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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

L. . P

BEFORE TIIE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE

In re: I A KM e AWA Dock-ell\flo'. 08-0131

)
)
CIIRISTINE DOBRATZ, an individual )
doing business as WOLF HOWL-O )
)
)
)
)

EXOTIC PETS, also known as WOLF

HOWL-O EXOTIC PETTING ZOQ,
CONSENT DECISION

Respondent. ~ . AND ORDER

This-proé:f;e(;i-ﬁgdx;!as mblllutedunderthe Ammachlfare Act, as amended (7 U.5.C. § 2131
ct seq.)(the "Act"), by a eomplainl filed by the Administrator, Animal and Plant Health Inspection
Serviee, United States Department of Agrieulture, alleging that the respondent willfully violated the
regulations and sta.ndards isgued_pllllrsqap't_to thf: {xct (9 C.F.R. §1.1¢tseq.). Thisdccision is entered
pursuant to the consent deeision provlisions of the Rules of Practice applicable to this procecding (7
CFR. §1.138).

Respondent admits all of the allegations in the complaint as set forth herein as findings of
fact and conclusions of law, spécif_ically admits that the Secretary has jurisdietion in this matter,
waives [urther procedure, and ;oﬁscﬁts dnd agrees, for the purpose of settling this proceeding, to the
entry of this decision. The complainant agrees to the entry of this decision.

Findings of Fact

L Christinc Dobratz is an Iindividual -;lloing business as Wolf Howl-O Exotic Pets (also
known as Wolf Howl-O Exotie Potting Zoo), whose busincss mailing address is 307 Maranatha
Road, Kelso, Washington 98626. At all times mcentioned herein, said respondent operated as both
a dealer and exhibitor, as those tcrms are used in the Act and the Regulations. Between March 22,

2005, and June 26, 2006, said respondent held license number 91-A-(106, and between June 26,



2006, and August 7, 2007, said rcspondent held license number 21-B-0090,

2. On three dates (.Tlil{e 14,2005,atappr0x1mately 1:15, pan., December 12, 2006, at
approximately 1:00 p.mu., and January 24, 2007, at both 12:18 and 12:53, p.m.) respoundent failed
to allow access to its facility so that APIIIS inspeetors could conduct an inspection.

3. On June 20, 20035, rcspondent failed to make, kcep, and maintain full and correct
records of the acquiSition bf ’terllu ammalb (ﬂvc hcd é;ehogs, two ferrets and threc rabbits).

4, QOn Seplember 22, 2005, respondent failed lo mnake, keep, and maintain [ull and
correct records of the acquisition o[ thirleen animals (one Patagonian cavy, five Degus, one raecooun,
threc puinea pigs, and three coatimundis.

5. On l-'cbru-ary 15,2006, respondent failcd to make, keep, and maintain full and correct
records of the acquisition and disposition of ten animals (onc fallow deer, four hedgehogs, and five
Pataponian cavies).

6. Between approximatelx June 14, 2005, and Oetober 13, 2005, respondent failed to
ensure that respondent’s allendi:ng vét;'illlarlilan ‘had adcciuélc authority to ensure the provision of
adequate veterinary care and to ovcrsee the adequacy of other aspects of animal care and use, and
speceifically, respondent’s attending veterinarian’s practice was in Rainier, Oregon, respondent
refused to adhcre (o the veterinary medieal recornmendation of local veterinarians at Valley
Veterinary Clinic who examined a juveniie lynx in July 2005 and in early Septcmber 2005 (when
the lynx was twice diagnosed as having “aliamentary hyperparathyroidism™), failed to adhcre Lo the
veterinary ncdical recommendation of another local veterinarian (Dr. Randall Ilaveman) who
examined the lynx in September 2003, diagnose(i it as suffering from metabolie bone discase and

recommended an improved diel, and failed to provide an adequate diet to the lynx. The lynx died



on October 13, 2003, from cumplicatioris of metabolic bone disease.

7. Between approximately June 14, 2005, and October 13, 2005, respondent failcd to
establish and maintain adequate programs of veterinary care that include the availability of
appropriate personnel to comply with the Regulations, and specifically, respondenl lacked the
requisite knowledge of 111etaﬁdlié bdf;é"-dis‘é;'ée;‘the need tb providc an adequate diet to juvenile
felids, and the health risks to animals of rcceiving an inadequate diet, and respondent consequently
failed to adherc to cslablished veterinary medreal and generally-accepted animal [ceding practices
in connection with a juvcnile lynx suffering from metabolic bone disease.

3. Between approximately June 14, 2005, and October 13, 2005, respondent failed o
handle a juvenile lynx as carefully and expeditiously as possible in a manner that does not cause
rauma, physical harm, or unnecessary discomfort.

9. On June 20, 2005, reSpond;nt failed:

| a to COIlStl'Ulct hc;;]sllnlg] fa‘cllhlhlcb so as 'tol p;otectlanimals 1rom injury in that:

i respondent’s hedgchog enclosure lacked a solid floor, and instead was

constructed of mesh, which allowed thc animals’ feet to fall through the floor’s

openings.
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ii. resp;)ndél;t;; lrlailcr enclosure housing small mammals was tnissing
a ceiling panel, allowing loose insulation and other debris to come out of the ceiling
over the animal enclosures.
b. 1o adequately venltilatx: indvor housing facilities, in tbat respondent houscd

ncwly-acquired small animals in a trailer with inadequate ventilation that failed to prevent

the animals housed therein from diseomfort.



C. to keep the water receptacle for a coupar clean and sanitary.
d. to keep premises clean, and lo place accumulations of trash in designated
areas, and specifically:

L. the trailer - housing small mammals contained old carpeting,
“upholstered furniture, framed pictures, stuffed animals, wall hangings, candy
machines, ostrieh cggs, and other miscellaneous items,” that could potentially tnjure
the animals contained therein.

ii. rgspondent housed two baby Patagonian cavies in her housc beneath
a pet carricr housing a raceoon, next to a cage containing a cockatoo and a tablc
containing “vials of medication, misc. papers, magazines, and othcr miscellaneous
flems,” and with “debris and clutter on the floor around the enclosure,” all of which
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could potcntially injure the eavics contamed therein, and the cockatoo and raccoon .

could potentially spread disease to the cavics.

jit. the cnclosure housing hedgehogs has an open-mesh floor, allowing

food, excreta and bedding to fall onto the carpeting [loor below, where respondent

L S J._'- Lot me e

placed paper to collect the detritus,

e. to establish and maintain an effective program to control insects and pests,

and specifically, respondent’s trailer housing facility was not kept clean and sanitary, and

was attraeting {lics.
[l et . '
10. On Septembcr 22 2005 resmndent Idﬂed to provide puinea pigs with a diet

appropriate to the specics, and of sufficient nutritive value.

11, On March 8, 2006, respondent failed:
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a. to construct housing facilities so as to protect animals from injury, and
specifically:
1. the fencing in rcspondent’s llama enclosure is in disrepair.
il an old dog hoﬁsé in r(-:spondcnt’s llama enclosure has exposed rusty
nails,
b. to provide adequatc shelter from inclement wealher for two pot-bellicd pigs

housed outdoors without supplemental heat.

C. to provide a suitable method for draining excess water rapidly from the
enclosure housing Pataponian cavies, rabbits, Muntjac, and fallow deer, whosc enclosure

contained mud and standing water.

d. to enclose the facilities for dangerous animals by an eight-foot perimeter
fence.

c. to provide llamas with food in a location that minimizes contamination and
deterioration, and instead placed food for llamas on the wet and muddy ground.

f. to provide accessible potable water to Patagohian cavics, rabbits, Muntjac,
and fallow deer, all of which were housed in an enclosurc that precluded them from access
to water without having to traverse mud and standing water.

g to kecp premises clean, and to place accumulations of trash in designatcd
arcas, and specifically, the enclosure housing four llamas contained “several cars, a school
bus, heavy cquipment, a dump truck, bathtubs, metal siding, rolls of fencing, tires, pipes,
metal beams, assorted wirc, barbed wire, old animal sheller, earpeting, woodcn pallets, and

other miscellaneous junk”™ that could potentially injure the animals contained therein.
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12, Between June 14,2005, and October 13,2005, respondent failed to provide ajuvenile

lynx with a diet appropriate to the species, and of sufficicnt nutritive value.

13. Between June 14, 2305, and March 8, 2006, respondent failed to employ a sufficient
number of adequatcly-trained employees to maintain a professionally-acceptable level of husbandry

practices, specifically with respect to housing and feeding of animals.

Conclusions of Law

1. The re-sbondent haviug-admillcd the facts set forth above, and the parties having
agreed to the entry of this decision, such decision will be entered.

2. On three dates (June 14, 2005, at approximately 1:15, p.m., December 12, 2006, at
approximately 1:00 p.m., and January 24, 2007, at both 12:18 and 12:55, p.m.) respondent failed
to allov.; accessl -to its feicilily ;sout-hlaqt APHIS inlspf;cllolr‘smc-ould conduct an inlspection, in willful
violation of sections 2146(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. § 2146(a)), and 2.126(a) of the Regulations (9
C.F.R. § 2.126(a)).

3 On June 20, 2{)05, resppndcnt failed to make, keep, and maintain full and correct
records of the acquisition of len al1lnima]s' (five hedgehogs, two ferrets and three rabbits) in willful
violation of section 2.75(h) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.75(b)).

4. On September 22, 2005, respondent failed to make, keep, and maintain full and
correct records of the acquisition of thiftéeﬂ animals (one Patagonian cavy, [ive Degus, one raccoon,
threc guinea pigs, and three coatimundis) in willful violation of section 2.75(b) of the Regulations
(9 C.F.R. § 2.75(b)).

5. OnTebruary 15, 2006, respondent failed to make, keep, and maintain full and correct

records of the acquisition and disposition of ten animals (one fallow deer, four hedgehogs, and tive
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Patagonian cavies) in willful violation of section 2.75(b) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.75(b)).
6. Betwcen approximately Junc 14, 2005, and October 13, 2005, in willful violation of
seetion 2.40(a)(2) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.40(a)(2)), respondcnl failed to ensurc thal
respondent’s attending veterinarian had adéquate authority to ensure the provision of adequate
veterinary care and to oversee the adequacy ol other aspects of antmal care and use, and specifically,
respondent’s attending veterinarian®s practice was in Rainier, Oregon, respondent refuscd to adhere
to the vetcrinary medical recomumendation of local veterinarians at Valley Velerinary Clinic who
examined a juvenile Iynx in July 2005 and in early Septembcr 2005 (when the lynx was twice
diagnosed as having “aliamentary hyperparathyroidism”), failed to adhere to the veterinary medical
recommendation of another local veterinarian (Dr. Randall Haveman) who examined the lynx in
Séptember 2005, diagnosed 1t as suffcring from metabolic bone disease and recommended an
improved diet, and failed to provide an adequatc diet to the lynx. The lynx died on October 13,

2005, from complications of metabolic bone disease.

T e T T S ke

7. - I‘]?;ct\a‘vle;::'lrl approxlmarely June 14, 2005;;1;& Oel;ltober 13, 2005, resbondent failed to
cslablish and maointain adequate programs of veterinary care Lhat includé the availability of
appropriate personnel to comply with the Regulations, and specifically, respondent lacked the
requisite knowledge of metabolic bone disease, the nced to provide an adequate diet to juvenile
felids, and th;e hea.ltlh risks to aﬁimals c;f rc@iviné an inadequate diet, and respondent consequently
failed 1o adhere to established veterinary medical and generally-accepted animal fecding practices

in eonnection with a juvenile lynx suflering from metabolic bone disease, in willful violation of

section 2.40(b}(1) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.40(b}(1)).

8. Between approximately Junc 14, 2005, and October 13, 2005, respondent failed to
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handle a juvenile lynx as carefully and expeditiously as possible in a manner that does not cause
trauma, physical harm, or unnecessary discomfort, in willful violation of section 2.131(b)(1) of the

Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.131(b)(1)).

9. Ou June 20, 2005, respondent vﬁllfully violated section 2.100(a) of the Regulations
(9 C.I.R. § 2.100(2):
a. By failing to meet section 3.125(a) of the Standards (9 C.F.R.-§ 3.125(a)), by
failing Lo construct housing lacilities so as to prolect animals from injury, and specifically:
i, respondent’s hedgehog enclosure lacked a solid floor, and instead was
constructed of mesh, which allowed the animals® feet to fall through the floor’s
openings.
il respondenl(’s trailer enclosure housing small mammals was missing
a ceiling pancl, allowing loose insulation and other debris to come out of the ceiling
over the animal enclosures.
b. By failing to ineet scclion 3.126(b) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.126(b)), by
failing to adequately ventilate indoor housing facilities, and specifically, respondent housed

newly-acquired small animals in a trailer with inadequate ventilation that failed to prevent

the animals housed therein from discomfort.

C. By failing to meet seetion 3.130 of the Standards (9 C.F.R. §3.130), hy failing

to kcep the water receptacle for a cougar clean and sanitary.

d. By failing to mect section 3.131(c) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.131(c)), by

failing to keep premises clcan, and to place accumulations of trash in designated arcas, and

specifically:
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i the trailcr housing small mammals contained old carpeting,
“upholstered furmiture, framed pictures, stuffed animals, wall hangings, candy
machines, ostrich eggs, and other miscellaneous items,” that could potentially injurc

the antmals contained theretn.

il. re:;po-liée.rl; Houéc& two bﬁby Patagonian cavies in her housc bencath
a pet carrier housing a raccoon, next to a cage containing a cockatoo and a table
containing “vials of medication, misc, papers, mugazines, and othcr miscellaneous
items,” and with “debris and cluttcr on the floor around the enclosure,” all of which
could potentially injure the cavies contained therein, and the cockatoo and raccoon
could potentially spread discase to the cavies.

iii. the enclosure housing hedgehogs has an open-mesh floor, allowing
food, excreta and bedding Lo fall onto the carpeting floor below, whcere respondent
placed paper to cblléct the detritus. |
e. By failing to meet section 3.131(d) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.131(d)), by

failing o establish and maintain an effectivc program to control iﬁsects and pests, and

specifically, respondent’s trailer housing facility was nol kept elean and sanitary, and was

allracting ﬂigs.

10.  On September 22, 2005, respondent willfully violated section 2.100(a) of the
Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a), by failing to meet section 3.129(a) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. §
3.129(a}), by failing to providc guinca pigs with a dict appropriate to the species, and of sufficicnt

nutritive value,

11.  OnMarch 8, 2006, respondent willfully violated section 2.100(a) of the Regulations
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(9 C.F.R. § 2.100(=):
a. By failing to mcct seetion 3.125(a) of Lthe Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.125(a)), by
failing to construct housing facilities so as to protect animals from injury, and specifically:
i< the :.fanihéi.in‘r«é_spohdent’s 1lama enclosure is in disrepair.
1i. an old dog house in respondent’s 1lama enclosure has exposcd rusty
nails.

b. By failing to meet scction 3.127(b) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.127(b)), by
failing to provide adequate sheltcr from inclement weather for two pot-bellied pigs housed
outdoors without supplemental heat.

c. By failing to meet section 3.127(c) of the Standards (9 CI.F R. §3.127(c)), by
failing to provide a suitable method for draining excess water rapidlyl from the enclosure

";- |u|1'1:: e et

housmgl Patagonlan cavies, rabblts, Muutjac a.nd fallow dcerl whose enclosure contamed
mud and standing water. |

d. By failing to meet scction 3.127(d) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.127(d)), by
failing to enclosure their facilities for dangerous animals by an eight-foot perimeter fence.

e, By failing to mcet section 3.129(b) ol the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.129(t)), by
failing to provide llamas with food in a location that minimizes contamination and
deterioration, and instead placed food for llamas on the wet and muddy ground.

f. By falhng tomect section 3.130 of the Standards (9C.F.R.§3.130), by failing

A e B GG SCCTRO v i e e

to provxdc accessible poldble water to Patagoman cavies, rabblts Muntjac and fallow deer,

all of which werce housed in an enclosure that precluded them from access to water without

having to traverse mud and standing water.
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g By failing to meet section 3.131{c) of the Standards (9 C.F.R. § 3.131(c)), by

failing to kcep premises clean, and to place accumulations of trash in designated arcas, and

specifically, the enclosure housing four llamas contained “several cars, a school bus, heavy

equipinent, a dump truck, bathtul;s, metal siding, rolls of fencing, tires, pipes, metal beams,

assorted wire, barbed wire, old animal shelter, carpeting, wooden pallets, and other
miscellaneous junk” that could potentially injure the animals contained therein.

12, DBetween June 14, 2005, end Oclober 13, 2005, respondent willfully violated section
2.100(a) of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a), by [ailing to mect seclion 3.129(a) of the Standards
(9 C.F.R. § 3.129(a)), by failing to provide a juvenile lynx with a diet appropriate to the spceics, and
of sufficient nutritive valne,

13. Between June 14, 20b5, and March 8, 2006,Iresp0ndent willfully viélaled section
2.100@ of the Regulations (9 C.F.R. § 2.100(a), by failing to meet Isection 3.132 of the Standards
(9 C.F.R. § 3.132), by failing to employ a sullicient number of adequatcly-trained employees to
maintain a professionally-acceptable level of husbandry practices, specifically with respect to
housing and feeding of animals.

Order

1. Respondcnt, her agents and employees, sucecssors and assigns, directly or throngh
any corporate or other device, éhall cease and desisl from violating the Act and the regulations and
standards issued thereunder.

2, Animal Welfare Act licenses numbers 91-A-0106 and 91-B-0090 arc hereby revoked.

The provisions of this order shall become effective immediately. Copies of this decision

shall be served upon the parties.
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!hristine Dobratz, dba Howl-O

Exonc Pets, aka Wolf Howl-O Exotic Petting Zoo

W O A W AN e e O

\&olleen A. Carroll
Attomey for Complainant

Dong ‘atWashmgton D C

“this e day of 2009” |

2L 2N

Marc R. Hillso
Chief Administrative Law Judge
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 certify that on the 15™ day of April, 2009, I served the original
CONSENT DECISION AND ORDER on:

Colleen A. Carroll
Office of the Gengeral Counsel

Room 107W, Whitten Building
1400 Independence Ave, SW.
Washington, D.C. 20250-1400

by mailing said document in a sealed envelope with postape prepaid to the address shown above,
and deposited in the U.S. Mail at Portland, Orcgon, on the 15" day of April, 2009.

DATED this 15" day of April, 2009,

THE ANIMAL LAW PRACTICE

By: _JZL‘L___ -
Geordie Duckler, OSB#87378

Attorneys for Respondent CHRISTINE
DOBRATZ, individually and dba WOLF
HOWL-0O EXOTIC PETS, aka WOLF
HOWL-0O EXOTIC PETTING ZOO

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE - 1





